

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 7, 2022 to March 30, 2023

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
April 5, 2023 to July 26, 2023

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
JUNE 29, 2023

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
OCTOBER 25, 2023

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2023

CHAPTER 11
H.P. 1241 - L.D. 1933

An Act to Increase the Debt
Limit of the Limerick Water
District

Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts and resolves of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, this legislation must take effect before the expiration of the 90-day period in order to allow the Limerick Water District to make timely investments to provide water treatment; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1957, c. 219, §10, as amended by P&SL 1997, c. 75, §§1 and 2, is further amended to read:

Sec. 10. Authorized to borrow money, to issue bonds and notes. For accomplishing the purposes of this act, and for such other expenses as may be necessary for the carrying out of said purposes, the district, through its trustees, without district vote, is authorized to borrow money temporarily and to issue therefor its negotiable notes, and for the purpose of renewing and refunding the indebtedness so created, of paying any necessary expenses and liabilities incurred under the provisions of this act, including organizational and other necessary expenses and liabilities whether incurred by the district or the Town of Limerick, the district being authorized to reimburse the Town of Limerick for any such expenses incurred by it, and in acquiring properties, paying damages, laying pipes, mains, aqueducts and conduits, constructing, maintaining and operating a water plant or system and making renewals, additions, extensions and improvements to the same, and to cover interest payments during the period of construction, the district, through its trustees, without district vote, is also authorized to issue, from time to time, bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the district in one series, or in separate series, in such amount or amounts, bearing interest at such rate or rates, and having such terms and provisions as the trustees ~~shall~~ may determine; ~~provided~~ except that the total indebtedness of the district at any one time outstanding may not exceed the sum of ~~\$1,000,000~~ \$2,000,000. Said bonds, notes and evidences of indebtedness may be issued to mature serially or made to run for such periods as the trustees may determine, but none of them ~~shall~~ may run for a longer period than 40 years from the

date of original issue thereof. Bonds, notes or evidences of indebtedness may be issued with or without provision for calling the same prior to maturity, and if callable may be made callable at par or at such premium as the trustees may determine. All bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness ~~shall~~ must have inscribed upon their face the words "Limerick Water District"; ~~shall~~ and must be signed by the treasurer and countersigned by the ~~chairman~~ chair of the board of trustees of the district, and if coupon bonds are issued, the interest coupons attached thereto ~~shall~~ must bear the facsimile signature of the treasurer. All such bonds, notes and evidences of indebtedness so issued by the district ~~shall~~ be ~~are~~ legal obligations of the district, which is hereby declared to be a quasi-municipal corporation within the meaning of the Revised Statutes of 1954, chapter 53, section 137, and chapter 90-A, section 23, as enacted by the public laws of 1957, chapter 405, section 1, and all the provisions of said sections ~~shall~~ be ~~are~~ applicable thereto. The said district may refund and reissue, from time to time, in one or in separate series, its bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness, and each authorized issue ~~shall~~ constitute constitutes a separate loan. All bonds, notes and evidences of indebtedness issued by said district ~~shall~~ be ~~are~~ legal investments for savings banks in the State of Maine and ~~shall~~ be ~~are~~ tax exempt.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the district, through its trustees, may issue bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness in amounts exceeding ~~\$1,000,000~~ \$2,000,000 at any one time if a greater debt limit is established by referendum in accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 35-A, section 6413. The district may not have outstanding at any one time bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness in amounts exceeding any debt limit established by referendum in accordance with Title 35-A, section 6413.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective June 16, 2023.

CHAPTER 12
H.P. 1149 - L.D. 1786

An Act to Repeal and Replace
the Charter of the Boothbay-
Boothbay Harbor Community
School District

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1953, c. 156, as amended by P&SL 2019, c. 11, §§1 to 3, is repealed and the following enacted in its place: